ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COMW TTEE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 18, 2001
1:35 p.m

HOUSE MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Scott Ogan
Representative Drew Scal zi
Representative Peggy W1 son
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

HOUSE MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
SENATE MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Kim Elton

SENATE MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

STATEW DE TRANS. | MPROVEMENT PROGRAM (STIP) PROCESS, FUNDI NG
SOURCES: FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT MATCHES

W TNESS REG STER
KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conmi ssioner
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive
Juneau, Al aska 99801- 7898

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -1- January 18, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided informati on on the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities.

THOVAS B. BRIGHAM Director of Statew de Pl anning

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801- 7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformation on statew de pl anni ng
policies and procedures of the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities.

FRANK RI CHARDS, State Miintenance Engi neer

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801- 7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformati on on hi ghway mai nt enance.

GEORGE CAPACCI, Captain and General Manager

Mari ne H ghway System

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801- 7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformation on Marine H ghway
System

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-2, SIDE A [HOUSE TRA TAPE]
Number 0001

CO CHAIR JOHN CONDERY, Senate Transportation Standing Conmittee
called the joint neeting with the House Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Menbers present were
Representatives Kohring, Masek, Ogan, Scalzi, WIson, and
Kapsner, and Senators Cowdery, Taylor, Ward, WI ken, and Elton.

Nunber 0067

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities (DOT&PF), reported that he had brought
handouts and other information requested by the conmttee at its
previ ous neeti ng.

Number 0255

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 2- January 18, 2001



MR. PARKAN offered a handout ["Estimates of DOT&PF Cost Savings
by Not Paying 50% of the Non-Federal Match Requirenent for
Anticipated AIP Projects at 6 Specific Local Sponsor Airports"]
in response to Senator Elton's question about potential genera
fund savings if the state did not participate in the federal
program for nunicipally owned airports. M. Parkan said the
handout had been provided by the DOT&F statew de aviation
office using information from the Federal Aviation Authority
(FAA) . The estimate for federal fiscal years 2001-2005, based
on entitlenments scheduled to go to particular airports plus the
capital project requests that those airports have submtted to
the FAA, was for $1.76 million in general savings to the state.

[ M. Parkan's second handout addressed Representative Kohring's

guestion on the .08 [ Dbl ood] al cohol [l evel readi ng] .
Information in it was provided by the United States Departnent
of Transportation H ghway Adm nistration. The information,

broken down by state, shows how much noney the State of Al aska
would lose if the state fails to inplenent the policy.]

Number 0399

MR. PARKAN then presented two handouts related to Senator Ward's
guesti ons about rur al ai rports, their r unway | engt hs,
facilities, lights, and related informtion. One listed all of
the airports in the state. The second was a sanple of

information available on the Internet, what the FAA calls "50-10
information," based on the FAA s Al aska Supplenent, which he
characterized as containing "pretty nuch all the information
pilots use in flying into the state.”

Nunmber 0536

SENATOR WARD said he had been hoping that a state that was in
charge of this many airports, or that had sone degree of funding
responsibilities, mght have conpiled a list of what they [the
airports] all were. However, he would go to the Internet.

Nunmber 0547

MR. PARKAN expl ai ned that the Al aska Suppl ement published by the
FAA is the basic reference, and is used extensively. DOT&PF
hel ps provide and update the information in it. In response to

Senator Ward's request, he prom sed to provide two copies of the
book [the Al aska Supplenent] to put on file for use by both the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 3- January 18, 2001



House and t he Senate.
Number 0595

MR. PARKAN then provided information pertaining to Senator
Taylor's questions about the Bradfield Road. A considerabl e
anount of review has taken place on that road, he said. He gave
out copies of two docunents submtted to the legislature in
1997. He described the first one as "a summary of the Bradfield
project and why it's not considered a viable project, wth sone
background as to why," which DOT&PF had prepared, and the second
one as a feasibility study by the United States Departnent of
Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service on the sane project. He noted
that both docunents include information relating to the British
Col unmbi a (BC) governnent's reluctance to support the project.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if the BC government is still reluctant.

MR. PARKAN replied that DOT&F has heard nothing to the
contrary.

Nunber 0727

MR. PARKAN recalled testinony given |ast week by Thonas B.
Brigham [Director of Statewi de Pl anni ng, Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities] that the road probably
would be a $300 million dollar project, adding, "very expensive

when you consider that our entire state program is about $400
mllion."

SENATOR WARD asked if DOT&F would be contacting the BC
government to see if there has been any change in their
opposi tion.

NUMBER 0777

THOVAS B. BRIGHAM Director of Statew de Planning, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities, said the departnent would

be happy to do so. He explained that ore mned in Canada's
| skut River Valley now is hauled to Stewart, a Canadian port,
for export. He said he thought the BC governnent was not |ikely

to support shipping the ore through an Anmerican port, even
t hough the route m ght be shorter and nore cost-effective.

Number 0803

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -4- January 18, 2001



SENATOR WARD asked DOT&PF to call Canada and report back to the
comittee.

CO CHAIR CONDERY said that if there were a change in position
it would be helpful to get it in witing.

MR. BRI GHAM said that m ght prove to be nore difficult since it
is a diplomatic issue, and the Canadians were not willing to put
their position in witing the last time the subject was
di scussed. However, he said, DOT&F would do what it could to
get the best [indication].

CO CHAI R CONDERY said he was sure that Senator Taylor would like
to get as nmuch as possible in witing, and suggested that
Senator Taylor mght have been able to secure that if he had
been present at the |ast neeting.

MR. BRI GHAM observed that he did not think there was anything
that would prevent the conmittee or any legislator from
contacting a counterpart in British Colunbia about the issue.
There is no question that it [a change in the Canadi an position]
woul d shed a whole new |ight on the project, he said.

CO CHAI R CONDERY added, "But our counterpart is the |egislature;
your counterpart is in admnistration, right? And so | think
adm ni stration woul d. . . li ke to get t he letter from
adm nistration if at all possible.”

MR. PARKAN said he had brought one nore item which the
commttee had not requested but mght be of interest. It was
material from a presentation that the [DOT&F] comm ssioner had
given to the House Finance Commttee the previous day on DOT&PF
m ssions and performance neasures and how the departnent had
performed | ast year on the neasures that were included in Senate
Bill 281.

Nunmber 0928

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG asked for an explanation of the handout
entitled, in part, "Estimtes and Costs Savings."

MR. PARKAN recalled that at the last neeting, Senator Elton had
asked about t he departnent's deci si on to di sconti nue
contributing 50 percent of the match requirement for FAA
projects at nunicipally owed airports. "W [DOI&F] felt those

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 5- January 18, 2001



communities could cover that match requirenent thenselves, and
there was discussion about that," he said. Senator Elton had
asked how nuch the state was going to save in general funds as a
result. Currently, for FAA projects, there is about a 7 percent
general fund match requirenent to the federal dollars that cone

in, he said. The state has been contributing general fund
dollars at half of that match for the larger conmunities in the
state -- Juneau, Kenai, Anchorage, Merrill Field, Palner

Sol dot na, and Wasil |l a.
Number 1046

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said he was concerned that municipalities
-- which often have agreed to take over the operations and
managenment of nunicipal airports -- mght be left wth little
incentive to continue to participate "if they' re going to be not
only short of these nonies, but also assum ng the operation and
managenent . "

MR. PARKAN replied that nost of these airports (wth the
possi bl e exception of Wsilla) have been nunicipally owned and
operated for many years. He said DOT&PF had considered the
possibility that Representative Kohring raised, but felt that
the agency's action would not create an overall disincentive.
When there was a squeeze in the capital budget a few years ago,
DOT&PF had been asked to reduce its match requirenent, he said,
and this was one area in which the agency did not have a
responsibility. "They weren't our airports,” he pointed out.
"In a way, it has been a kind of nunicipal assistance offer in
whi ch we have participated when we were able and had the general
funds to do so." M. Parkan said the agency had given
comunities anple notice of the policy change so they would have
time to adjust future budgets and not have to nmake the
accomodation in their current fiscal year. He noted that
| anding fees are an option open to conmmunities to offset the
| oss of state funds.

Number 1229

SENATOR ELTON said the objection he has to the decision made by
DOT&PF is that, those communities that are nobst responsible in
maintaining their ports and harbors are the ones that are
getting squeezed. He said he thought the departnment's decision
is going to nmke it nore difficult to convince other
municipalities to assune those responsibilities, "if they know

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 6- January 18, 2001



they are going to have to pick up these costs.™
Number 1381

MR. BRIGHAM distributed another handout and gave a broad
overview of the Statewide Transportation |nprovenent Program
(STIP) process. The program consists of four pieces: the
Nat i onal Hi ghway System of which the Marine H ghway Systemis a
designated part; the state highway system which is |ocated
primarily in central Alaska; the Community Transportation
Program (CTP), consisting of local roads and streets; and Trails
and Recreational Access for Alaska (TRAAK), including highway
pul | outs and enhancenents.

SENATOR WARD asked where the scenic highways fall into that.

MR. BRIGHAM replied that the departnment has been able to fund
that program by successfully conpeting for scenic byway grant
noney.

Nunber 1492

MR. BRI GHAM expl ained that CITP and TRAAK projects are proposed
by advocates from the local level, then evaluated and given a
nunerical score by DOT&PF to determine the order in which they
wi |l be funded.

MR BRIGHAM then called attention to a page of the handout
describing how a local comrunity can get federal noney for a
proj ect. He said the first step would be for the comunity to
talk to DOT&PF planning people in their region to find out if
the project mght be eligible for federal funding, and if so,
how to present the local project in the nost effective manner.
He stressed that it was up to the |ocal governmental wunit, not
the state, to determine if a project has |ocal support.

Nunber 1597

SENATOR WARD asked if a project could originate at the state
| evel without any |ocal involvenent.

MR. BRI GHAM said that "alnost never happens” except when there
is a state road in the area that DOI&F is responsible for
mai ntai ning, in which case DOT&PF nmight initiate dialog with the
|l ocal community about inproving the state highway that runs

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -7- January 18, 2001



t hr ough t own.
Number 1619

SENATOR WARD referred to a proposal for a TRAAK project put
forth by Representative [Joe] G een about maintaining the Tony
Know es Coastal Trail in the district that both Representative
Green and Senator Ward represent. He said there had been no
expression of support fromthe comunity in Anchorage, and asked
if that project had becone a priority.

MR. BRI GHAM said that was an atypical project.

SENATOR WARD asked if there had been any |ocal resolution of
support for that project.

MR. BRI GHAM said he thought that [formal expression of support]
had conme several years ago from the Mnicipality of Anchorage,
and that the project would have to have been chosen by the
Anchorage Metropolitan Area Transportation Study to have
advanced to the environnental [inpact study] stage. He added
that he was aware that the project was a conplicated and
controversial one.

MR BRIGHAM in response to a request by Senator Ward, said he
would be happy to provide a copy of the local resolution
supporting the extension of the Tony Know es Coastal Trail.

Nunber 1691

SENATOR ELTON asked if DOIr&PF had changed its evaluation and
review process in Southeast Al aska in response to the Southeast
Transportation Plan. He wondered if the response had changed
the way the departnment would review and evaluate a project for
the STIP.

Nunber 1712

MR. BRIGHAM said there are two parts to that answer. First, if
many of the projects that were contenplated as part of that plan
were comunity transportation-type projects, yes, it would; but
very few of them are. Mst of them are National H ghway System
projects. Although DOI&F has tried to give them as nuch
priority as it could, recognizing the need to inprove the cost
structure of the Alaska Marine H ghway as soon as possible, it

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 8- January 18, 2001



takes capital investnent in order to realize that, he said.

MR. BRI GHAM said the second part of the answer is that the first
review of the local project proposals is nmade by the appropriate
DOT&PF regional office. The projects are given a prelimnary
score based on certain criteria. Anything above about 70, which
is a md-level score, is sent to the statew de conpetition.
There it is given a final score by the Project Eval uation Board,
a six menber statewide group, and listed in the overall program
in the order of score.

Nunber 1823

MR. BRIGHAM then called attention to a diagram of the steps that
DOT&PF follows for the full STIP. The departnment is now in the
2001- 2003 STI P, he not ed. Wrk on that began nearly two years
ago when the departnment gave public notice that it was | ooking
at the [selection] criteria. Three to four years ago, a |lot of
comunities that lie outside the road system had cone forward
and said it wasn't fair to give so much weight to |oca
contributions of capital or cash because many of the conmunities
in renote areas don't have any noney. He sai d DOT&PF responded
to that with sone restructuring.

MR. BRI GHAM said the departnent then does a broad solicitation
asking communities for their ideas, outlining what is federally
fundable, and asking that projects be sent in. Then the
regional office works with the comrunities. Noting that it is
hard for small communities to present a project in an effective
way because they do not have people wth expertise in
engi neering or transportation, he said that having the DOT&PF
regional people work with those communities is a key part of
making the process a fair one overall. Projects are then
evaluated at the regional |evel, and the higher-scoring projects
go to the statew de evaluation. The departnent then scores al
of the projects and publishes a "needs list.” That is a list of
everything that was requested, and is intended to be a
conprehensive list of the transportation needs around the state
-- roads, aviation, ports and harbors, everything. Sonme of
those are "wants," but nost of those are clearly "needs," he
sai d. DOT&PF drafts a prelimnary program in the back of that
[list], based on the scores they have at that tinme, he said.

Number 1948

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 9- January 18, 2001



MR. BRIGHAM said people then responds to that prelimnary

listing, and may do so in a way that wll raise a project's
score. For exanple, if a conmmunity takes over a road and
maintains it after the state inproves it, that project gains a
lot of points, he said. That reflects a very clear and

consistent bias on the state's part that the l|ocal streets
shoul d be the |ocal responsibility.

MR. BRIGHAM said that the needs list is out for 45 days, and

there is public review of it in all major conmunities. He
described this part as the npbst extensive public process the
depart nment undert akes. "That's when people need to react,"” he
said, adding, "W get a lot of comments at that stage."” DOT&PF

takes the comments, re-scores things, and publishes a draft
STI P. That draft is out for another 30 days. The depart nent
makes nore changes, and then gives the final STIP to the federal
Hi ghway Adm nistration and the Federal Transit Adm nistration;
they need to approve the STIP because it is a federal docunent.
They usually do so in about two weeks, and we have a new STIP,
he sai d.

Number 2092

MR. BRI GHAM then explained that for the 2001-2003 STIP, DOT&PF
started very wearly so the plan could be wused for the
departnent's FY 2001 budget submttal to the |egislature.
DOT&PF revised the STIP tineline specifically to align it wth
the capital budget tineline, and they are now coordinated
reasonably well, he said.

SENATOR WLKEN referred to the process developnent page and
asked how nuch tinme el apses between Step 1 and Step 10.

MR BRIGHAM replied, "Easily a year and a half."
SENATOR W LKEN noted that there was overl ap.
MR. BRI GHAM concurred, saying the key is to start early enough.

SENATOR W LKEN t hen asked about scoring in Step 4, inquiring how
many different paraneters are used, and if there is a list of
those and their relative weights.

MR. BRIGHAM said there are 12-15 paraneters, depending on the
program and that he would provide information about those
par amet ers.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -10- January 18, 2001



SENATOR W LKEN asked if the selection criteria nentioned under
Step 4 are what the departnent is thinking about putting in
regul ati on.

Nunber 2171

MR. BRIGHAM said that is part of it, and that "this process is
what we're working on putting into regulation right now "

MR. BRIGHAM referred to page 6 [of the STIP Explained handout]
noting that no process is ever perfect. "You set up your
process to handl e what you usually get, and you inevitably get
sone worthwhile projects that are a little different and don't
fit the criteria,” he observed. He enphasized that DOT&PF tries
to be as fair as possible, which is the objective.

MR. BRIGHAM referred to page 7 [of the STIP Explained handout],
noting that there is a different set of criteria for each of the
prograns. The rural and urban street program covers the bul k of

the roadway projects, he said. In addition, there is a set of
criteria for transit projects and another one for renote
proj ects, nost of whi ch are for "very fundanent a
infrastructure,” such as for sewer, water, or solid waste. He

pointed out that the criteria are biased toward those sanitation
projects, and that the state wundertakes those projects in
concert with the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Nunber 2284

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if by "rural sanitation projects,” M.
Brigham was referring to the "put the honey bucket in the
museum' obj ecti ve.

Nunmber 2305

MR. BRI GHAM said yes, noting that Village Safe Water and Public
Health Service projects often create a sewage system with a
sewage |agoon or sonme other kind of storage facility, and "you
need a road out to that to nmake it functional, and that's the
part we provide."

Nunmber 2326

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN observed, "So you're not actually building

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -11- January 18, 2001



the sewer systens or overseeing those contracts.”

MR. BRIGHAM said that was correct. He said those projects
usually are a cooperative effort with the state Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC) and the Public Health Service.
Typically, those agencies will handle the basic infrastructure
project and any DOT&PF work would sinply be in support of that,
he expl ai ned.

Nunber 2341

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked what inpact the Denali Comm ssion has had
on this.

MR. BRI GHAM sai d the inpact has been very positive because it is
not uncommon to see a housing devel opnent funded by the federa
Department of Housing and Urban Devel opnent (HUD) that is not
connected to any sewer or water infrastructure and does not have
a road to it, since no one planned that ahead of tine. Al though
The Denali Conm ssion has been focusing on things like bulk fuel
storage and simlar efforts, they have consistently and
continually raised the issue of "W've all got to be working off
the sane sheet of nusic here.™ The DOT&PF supports this 100
percent, he said.

Nunber 2370

MR. BRI GHAM nentioned that DOT&PF follows a simlar process for
aviation projects, with a conparable review group and scoring
process.

TAPE 01-2, SIDE B

MR. BRI GHAM conti nued, saying, "The FAA is nmuch nore controlling
about which projects actually get funded than are either the
Federal H ghway Administration or the Transit Admnistration.
They let us pretty nmuch devel op the program and sinply neke sure
everything is eligible. FAA, on the other hand, actually
selects the projects in many cases.” He said the state tries to
have enough aviation projects in the hopper so that "a good
group of projects” is selected, and that approach has been
"pretty successful" over the past few years. The FAA likes this
sort of scoring process and uses a simlar sort of process for
their nationw de sel ections, he added.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -12- January 18, 2001



Nunber 2340

MR. PARKAN vol unteered that the FAA liked the system Al aska had
est abl i shed. "The scoring criteria, the matrix that we will be
sharing with you, they liked it so much that they chose to adopt
it, our nodel, nationwide, and they are using a simlar nodel
now nationwide in the selection for all projects,” he added.

Nunber 2315

MR. BRI GHAM noted that DOT&PF "would love to do a lot of port
and harbor projects, but there is no federal funding program for
that outside of a little bit of [US. Arny] Corps of Engineers
noney for navigational inprovenents and that sort of thing that

we get each year." He pointed to that as a weakness in the
current program statew de. "W really have no way to replace
and repair a lot of these port and harbor facilities that in
many cases were built right after the '64 earthquake... [ And

that] are now getting old," he said.
Nunmber 2285

SENATOR ELTON asked if the scoring criteria for ports and
harbors include a "boost"” for projects that the |local community
will take over and nmaintain once the facility has been brought
up to code.

MR. BRI GHAM sai d he thought that was the case.

MR. PARKAN said they would check and provide a witten answer.
Nunber 2235

CO CHAIR CONDERY asked about the "weepy" buried fuel tanks in

VWhittier, sonething the federal governnent had |eft behind, and
said he hoped DOT&PF had that "all squared away."

Number 2213

MR BRIGHAM referred to page 8 [of STIP Explained handout],
which deals with the evaluation board. He expl ained that the
regional director presents the project and the other nenbers of
the board then score it. He characterized it as a "spirited
process. "

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -13- January 18, 2001



Nunber 2164

MR. BRI GHAM said other factors also can affect where a project
is placed in the STIP. These typically don't affect a lot of
projects, he said. The placenent of the sanitation projects
di scussed earlier generally is determned by Village Safe Water/
Public Health Service. If a solid waste facility is going to go
in 2003, that is when the state tries to schedule the road. "As
a lot of you know, nobilization in the Bush is a big deal," he
said. "It's a big part of your costs, so you generally want to
do all the work that you can while you are there.”

MR. BRIGHAM referred to page 10 as he expl ai ned that DOT&PF does

not score the federal highway projects, in part because those
projects are limted "to essentially all our nain highways." He
said, "our approach has been very sinple." W've just tried to

focus on the highways that are in the worst shape, that are the
farthest out of conpliance with current standards of w dth,
grade, and alignnment, and do at |east one of those a year." He
pointed to the G enn H ghway and the Seward H ghway as exanples
of federal highways of which a piece is being inproved each
year. He said the Parks H ghway also is nearly done, as are the
nost heavily used portions of the Richardson Hi ghway, but that
the Dal ton Hi ghway "has a | ong way to go."

Nunber 2018

SENATOR W LKEN requested a copy of a nmap showi ng which highway
sections have been conpl eted and what parts are schedul ed next.

MR. BRI GHAM agreed to provide this.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if they had any idea of when work will be
finished on the R chardson H ghway from Fairbanks to Val dez.

MR. BRIGHAM estimated it would be eight to nine years. Once the
A enn H ghway is finished, nore noney will be available for the
Ri chardson, he added. The departnent's goal is to have it al
up to current standards in ten years.

Number 1957

SENATOR W LKEN asked about the Shakwak Project, and if any nore
noney needs to be authori zed.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -14- January 18, 2001



MR. BRI GHAM said he understands that the l|ast authorization wll
bring the upgrade all the way from the U S.-Canadian border to
Kl uane Lake. The Canadi ans have been, in his opinion, making
good use of the noney, he said. The U S. portion was expanded a
little bit to let DOI&F do two pieces of the Haines H ghway

the parts on the U S. side, which were bad conpared with the
roadway on the Canadi an side, he added.

SENATOR W LKEN said the inprovenents to that highway certainly
have nade a difference, and that people in Anchorage and
Fai r banks benefit from truckers who will cone over that highway
now who woul dn't cone over it before. That creates sone |evel
of conpetition, helping to keep in check the rates that water
carriers are chargi ng, he observed.

MR. BRIGHAM concurred, saying truck travel tinme has fallen
dramatically.

Number 1850

CO CHAIR CONDERY alluded to a previous discussion regarding the
status of the federal funds being used for operations and
mai nt enance.

MR. PARKAN recalled that they had been tal king about the use of
the investnent earnings for the GARVEES [a type of bond
financing mechanisn], and he said that Frank Richards is
prepared to talk about how DOT&PF is using federal funds for
sonme deferred mai ntenance needs.

CO CHAIR CONDERY said he thought sonebody asked for a letter,
"and you said the feds had verbally approved doing that, but
sonebody here..."

SENATOR WARD vol unteered, "It was ne."

CO- CHAIR COWNDERY continued, "...asked for a letter stating
that."
Nunmber 1802

MR. PARKAN said he thought the request had to do with the GARVEE
issue, and he has in the past few days obtained sone e-nail
nmessages between DOT&PF and the Federal H ghway Adm nistration
regarding that. "I do not yet have anything in letter form but

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -15- January 18, 2001



we are pursuing that,"” he added.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked for an explanation of "force accounts.”

Nunber 1770

FRANK Rl CHARDS, State Mai ntenance Engi neer, Departnent  of
Transportation and Public Facilities, said "force account” is
defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, which governs
appropriation of highway funds. "Force account is defined as

use of state or public governnent enployees to do work using the
hi ghway funds for construction and now for operational expenses,
mai nt enance on the highway systens,” he said. "So in order to
be able to use force account nethods, you have to go through a
public interest finding as defined by the Code of Federa
Regul ations, Title 23."

CO CHAIR COADERY asked how many force accounts are typically
used in a year

Nunber 1720

MR. RICHARDS said each region receives approximtely three
separate all ocations.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked how many procurenent contracts in excess
of $100, 000 have been awarded in the past fiscal year.

MR. RICHARDS said he would have to get that information back to
the chair.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked for the sanme information with regard to
federal services. He then requested an explanation of the Saint
Marys Project, which he characterized as a $3.5 nillion project,
and asked if it was done by force account.

Nunber 1677

MR. RICHARDS said the Saint Marys project is yet to be done,
that it is scheduled for next year. It is a project that the
northern region [of DOT&PF] is going to do using force account
efforts, he explained, and it wll wutilize individuals from

within the community who are trained operators in order to help
the economically affected areas.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -16- January 18, 2001



CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if that nmeant it would not be put out to
public bid.

SENATOR WARD queried, "So the process on that was whoever was
| ocal got the bid?"

Number 1639
MR. RI CHARDS replied no.
SENATOR WARD asked how many of the people were |ocal.

MR RICHARDS said the project is to be done using state
enpl oyees and a conbi nation of state-owned and contractor-owned
equi pnrent. Materials also will be procured through contract, he
added.

SENATOR WARD said he assuned that the private sector could not
do it for the sanme anount of noney or less with the sane |evel
of service, and asked if that assunption was correct.

Number 1603

MR, RICHARDS replied that he was not that famliar with the
actual dollar conparison

SENATOR WARD asked if a dollar conpari son was done.

MR RICHARDS said that a dollar conparison had been done,
explaining that a dollar conparison is required [as part of] the
public interest finding. He added that DOT&PF Commi ssioner
Joseph L. Perkins "is very famliar with this" and wll include
it in his presentation.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked, "if these are state enployees who live
there in Emmonak or are they new state enployees that are going
to be created to do this job? Are they in the public enployees’
unions and things |ike that?"

Nunmber 1661

MR. RICHARDS said the workforce will primarily be hired in Saint
Marys. They will be state enployees through the bargaining
contract agreenents, nost |ikely Local 71 enployees because they

wi |l be operators and nechani cs.

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -17- January 18, 2001



CO CHAIR COWNDERY asked if there are qualified people in Saint
Marys to fill the need.

Number 1545

MR. RICHARDS said there is a new program under Al aska Wrks that
is being funded with Denali Comm ssion noney as well as wth
contributions from the AFL-ClQ Peopl e are going to be trained
so that they are conpetent operators who wll pass the
Commercial Driver's License test, he expl ai ned.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if the noney for training would cone out
of the $3.5 million.

MR. RICHARDS said it woul d not.
CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if all of that noney was bei ng donat ed.
MR. RICHARDS replied that it was.

SENATOR WARD asked, "if the residency requirenent would be a
driver's license and a post office box or will that be sonebody
that had qualified for a permanent fund [dividend]."

Number 1509

MR. RICHARDS said he was not sure what the requirenents would
be, but that the program would be open to people in Saint Mrys
and people who are interested in working on the job would have
to fly there.

MR. RICHARDS, responding to the inquiry of an wunidentified
commttee nmenber, explained that the project consists of
upgrading the surface of the gravel road from the village of
Saint Marys to the airport, a distance of approxinmately seven to
eight mles, renoving boulders and covering the surface wth
asphal t.

Nunber 1461
SENATOR W LKEN said he is curious about the Saint Marys project,
and what brought it to his attention was that a Fairbanks

contractor had prepared a bid and was expecting to be successful
at securing that $3.5 million project. The Senator testified:

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 18- January 18, 2001



It was pulled off the table and put under a force
account, as | wunderstand it, because of the economc
disaster in that particular part of the state, and
that was a function of having no fish in the river for

that particular tine. So what we have done here by
saying, well, there was no fish in the river this
year, we'll now take the fishermen or the fisher

peopl e and nmake them operators to build a road that's
a one-tinme project, and when they should be fishing
next sunmer, they'll be building a road. So you sort
of perpetuate the fact that there are no fish in the
river because there are no fishernen out there
[ because] they're building a road that could have been
built by Fairbanksans or Anchorage people or sonebody
while the econony of Saint Marys is sustained by the
fish. W've junped into the mddle of this and we've
done really a disservice to tw people: one, the
private contractor that expects to feed their people
i n Fairbanks or wherever, and two, the people who are
residents of the village. W haven't done them any
favors by junmping in and spreading $3.5 mllion around
Sai nt Marys. This is a very nice, warm "group hug"
thing that sonmeone did to nmke everybody feel good.
And what they've done is two things that are bad, and

I|"'m not very happy about it, and so | expect we've
already had one explanation in Decenber from
Comm ssioner Perkins. |1 expect we'll have another
explanation as to why this was such a good idea,
because | think it was a knee-jerk and |I'm here to
make sure we don't have knee-jerks like this. The
force accounting systemis in place, there's a defined
dollar limt, and it's there with a public interest

finding that's defined, and |'ve read through some of
them They're hollow at best, and while | understand

the concept, in this particular case, | have great
concern about the application, and | hope we don't do
it again until we all wunderstand why we take steps
like that, because | think we have hurt a lot of

peopl e under the guise and under the will to just show
good intent, and |I'm concerned about it.

Nunber 1357

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if there is a simlar project going on or

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -19- January 18, 2001



bei ng di scussed i n Emmonak.

Nunber 1346

MR. PARKAN sai d Emonak has expressed interest, but DOT&PF does
not have a project planned there simlar to the one in Saint
Marys.

NUVBER 1335

SENATOR WARD asked if there is discussion going on that would be
foll ow ng the same procedure.

Number 1328
MR. PARKAN said that at this point, to his know edge, there has

only been an expressed interest by the comunity of Enmonak.
There are other comunities that are interested in force

accounting and there have been for years. "W don't want the
Saint Marys project to be considered a policy or precedent in
the future," he said. "Emmonak is not followng a particular

path or process for force accounting.”
Number 1335

SENATOR WARD countered with, "But you did follow a process to
get to this point, so if sonebody else wants to re-create the
process (which several of them do now that they' ve seen this
nice little door open up), there's a process in place to
acconplish that."

MR. PARKAN replied, "Senator Ward, there is no specific process

in place. Every project request will be |ooked at individually.
and | can't say that Emonak wll be successful in their
request.”

Nunber 1225

SENATOR ELTON said he knows that in Wstern Al aska, when the
fish don't cone back, it has a ripple effect that goes far
beyond a storeowner or a bulk fuel seller; it has extensive
effects throughout those comunities. He said it would be
hel pful to him and perhaps to all of the commttee if when the
conmmi ssi oner cones before the committee, he brings soneone from
Proj ect Renew Hope or sonebody else who is famliar with the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 20- January 18, 2001



econom c inpacts in that area and how | ong-1lasting they may be.
Nunber 1200

CO CHAIR COADERY, referring to the "Catch-22" situation about
whi ch Senator W1 ken had expressed concern, requested that the
conmmi ssi oner address whether that is or isn't the case. He then
asked what a "public interest finding" or filing of it is.

Nunber 1160

MR. RICHARDS said a public interest finding is required by the
Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23, for the use of public
hi ghways nonies for force accounting. It is essentially a
costing conpari son between public enployees and public equi pnent
versus a contracting effort, basically a conparison of the cost

esti mat es. That filing is done by the region and provided to
the DOT&PF chief procurenent officer. Once the conmm ssioner
reviews and approves it, it is given to the Federal H ghway

Adm ni stration for approval.

Nunber 1114

SENATOR W LKEN added that there is a "trip wire" where one would
need one. "Wiat is the nunber, $50,000 or $100, 000?" he asked.
[ Several people talked at once, and it sounded as if there was
concurrence that the anobunt was $100, 000. ]

Nunber 1103

SENATOR WARD asked what the finding was in Saint Mrys.

Nunber 1091

MR. RICHARDS replied that the finding was that use of public
enpl oyees and public equi pnent was cost-effective for
reconstruction of the road in Saint Mrys.

Nunber 1080
SENATOR WARD asked if it was correct that there were sone
criteria used, some kind of formula put into place in order to

arrive at that deci sion.

Nunber 1064

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -21- January 18, 2001



MR. Rl CHARDS answered, "That is correct."”

SENATOR WARD asked if that procedure fits into Title 23 and has
been used on all projects.

MR. RICHARDS replied, "It is a procedure that we have instituted
in the expanding role of our ability to use federal highway
noni es. "

Number 1055

SENATOR WARD asked, "Is this a program that the State of Al aska
has nade up in order to get to a finding?"

MR. RICHARDS replied, "No, sir, not a predetermned finding. It
is a true cost conparison. The [indisc.] nust be justifiable.”

SENATOR WARD observed that one probably could tell from the
guestioning that there have been some people concerned with that
cost analysis and that those people have contacted the
| egi sl ature. He added, "sonme of us have been told on the face
of your evaluation that it just doesn't carry water, so maybe
sone of that material could be given to us so that we could nake
an i ndependent analysis of it."

Number 1000

CO-CHAIR CONDERY said it wasn't clear to him whether these were
going to be new public enpl oyees.

MR. RI CHARDS confirnmed that they woul d be new hires.

CO CHAIR COWDERY asked if they wuld be paid Davis-Bacon
[ wages] .

MR. RICHARDS replied that they would not, but rather wll be
pai d the bargaining contract wages for Local 71

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked if they all would be covered by Local 71
Nunber 0970

MR. RICHARDS explained that the hiring process is such that if
an individual is interested in working for the state, that

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -22- January 18, 2001



person nust sign up as a nenber of Local 71

CO-CHAIR COMNDERY asked if the workers would be considered
t enporary enpl oyees.

MR. RI CHARDS sai d t hey woul d.
CO CHAI R CONDERY asked about the normal probation period.
Nunber 0942

MR. RICHARDS replied that wunder the bargaining contract wth
Local 71, the probation period is six nonths.

CO CHAIR CONDERY asked M. Richards to find out and report to
the commttee how much mai ntenance work has been done and in
what areas, by force account in about the |ast three years.

SENATOR ELTON added that he would |like to see that reported not
just as a nunber, but also as a percentage of total work.

Nunmber 0882

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he had sone serious concern about chip
sealing of the cracks in the roadways. He recalled that there
had been a "beautiful job of paving up there" about four to five
years ago. He said he recently becane painfully aware --
literally -- of the cracks. He wanted to know how much of the
road will be lost by not sealing the cracks. Also, he said, he

has introduced bills in the past that have gone nowhere trying
to get prison labor to do things like seal cracks. He said, "I
keep hearing that, ...it's too technical. But [when] | talk to
the people in the field that actually do it, they say... it
really isn't technical at all." He said he is concerned that
Alaska is losing a ot of the life of its roads by not crack-
sealing the secondary roads. He said his primary question is
how many years are being lost by not crack-sealing, and would
the DOT&PF be willing to consider prison |abor? He said he
understands that there could be a union problem but observed
that the job isn't being done at all now

Number 0730

CO CHAI R CONDERY commented that it seenms to him "that the bunps
in the road are not really the commssioner's fault or the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -23- January 18, 2001



governor's fault, but the asphalt.”
Nunber 0712

SENATOR WARD asked if there is going to be a project |abor
agreenent in Saint Mrys.

Number 0674

MR. PARKAN said he couldn't envision having a project |abor
agreenent "with your own enployees,” but he would check and get
back wth the answer to that as well as to Representative Ogan's
guesti on.

CO- CHAIR COWNDERY asked him also to follow up on "the new
projects that we have been talking about that are going to be
comng up: is it a policy to have project |abor agreenments on
t hose or not?"

Nunmber 0639

MR. PARKAN said DOT&PF does not have a policy to have project
| abor agreenents on all new projects that cone up.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked, "[On] any of then?"

MR. PARKAN said they have had project |abor agreenents in the
past and they have to neet a certain standard of need.

CO CHAIR CONDERY said he'd like to find out about what m ght be
done in the future.

Number 0557

GEORGE CAPACCI, Captain and General WManager, Marine Hi ghway
System Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities, then
gave a briefing. He said the Marine H ghway System operates
nine agi ng vessels, noting that the average age of the fleet is
28 years, even taking into account the Kennicott, which is |less
than three years ol d. The system covers routes of about 3,500
mles from Bellingham through Southeast Al aska to Haines and
Skagway, and through Prince WIIliam Sound to Honer, Kodiak, and
out the Aleutian Chain to Dutch Harbor. The ships call at about
34 different ports. Most of the vessels are in Southeast
Al aska, but there is one devoted to Prince WIIliam Sound and the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 24- January 18, 2001



Tustunena works primarily out the Chain. The Kennicott, the
newest ocean-goi ng vessel, nmakes trips in both regions.

Nunmber 0439

CAPTAIN CAPACCI said there are about 750 maritinme enployees
within three unions within the Marine H ghway System and that
nunber fluctuates seasonally. About 50 nore enployees work at
the termnals, and there are about 45 on the "shore side staff”
i n Juneau. In 1999, the ships carried 372,000 passengers and
about 150,000 vehicles, up about 5.5 percent in passengers and 4
percent in vehicles over the preceding year. The system is
seeing some noderate growh after a few years of decline in
traffic nunbers.

Nunber 0377
CAPTAIN CAPACCI said, "W were on pace for a record year in

2000, but we had a significant challenge on June 6 when the
Col unmbi a switchboard decided to have a lightning bolt and went a

little haywire..." he said. " That was a trenendous maritine
rescue that hasn't gotten the publicity it deserved. e
transferred 434 passengers in Chatham Strait from the Col unbia
to the Taku without even a mnor injury." He said he wants to

recogni ze the seamanship of the crews, who dealt so well with a
situation involving many el derly people and no electricity.

NUMBER 0249

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON interjected that she has not heard
anyt hi ng but wonderful things about the way that was handl ed.

Number 0199

CAPTAI N CAPACCI said another challenge is nmeeting internationa
training regulations that take effect February 1, 2002, and the
system is "working feverishly" toward that deadline. Al so,
significant increases over the past three years are responsible
for a significant unplanned expense, he said.

CAPTAIN CAPACCI explained that the international maritime
organi zation continues to conme out with safety regul ations that
are difficult to conply with by retrofitting aging vessels.
"Those international regulations are being blended right into
Title 46 of the U S. Code, he said. The Marine H ghway System
shi ps are considered passenger vessels, not ferryboats, so nust

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -25- January 18, 2001



meet very strict safety regul ations.
Number 0058

CAPTAI N CAPACC t hen addr essed t he Sout heast Al aska
Transportation Pl an.

TAPE 01-3, SIDE A [HOUSE TRA TAPE]

CAPTAIN CAPACCI said that the Southeast Al aska Transportation

Plan is the result of "an incredible effort, a very
conprehensive public process” involving all of the communities
in Southeast Al aska. Residents said they need a nore

conveniently scheduled, reliable daytine transportation system
One of the central parts of the plan was a finding that shuttle
ferries or high-speed vessels throughout Southeast Alaska can
neet sone of the demands custoners have. The Marine H ghway
System is working toward the inplenentation of the Southeast
Al aska Transportation Pl an.

Nunber 0161

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he had heard that British Colunbia is
getting out of the fast-ferry business.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI said that is true.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked: |f fast ferries are bad for British
Col unbi a, why are they good for Al aska?

Nunber 0187

CAPTAIN CAPACCI said the key problem with fast ferries in
British Colunbia was that "they built the wong ship for the
wrong route.” There are just 26 mles between the two ports,
and there are several places along the way where the fast
ferries couldn't run at full speed; the result was that the fast
ferries saved the only about eight mnutes. By contrast, from
Sitka to Juneau, "we're tal king about 132 nautical mles, and to
cover that in a 16-knot vessel, you're talking 8.5 to 9 hours,
depending on the tides and currents through Sergius Narrows," he

sai d. "A high-speed vessel traveling at least 32 knots can
cover that route in about four hours." Whereas speed was a
| uxury for the BC ferry system it is a necessity for Alaska [to
cover a route like the one between Sitka and Juneau in the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 26- January 18, 2001



daytine], he said. He added that those in the Al aska system
have studied both British Colunbia and Washington State ferries
as well as learning from experience worldw de w th high-speed
craft. "The State of Alaska is just comng online; the rest of
the world has been operating fast vehicle ferries and fast
passenger-only ferries for a couple decades,"” he said.

Number 0316

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked about fuel efficiency. He noted that
fuel consunption usually increases with vessel speed, and that
fuel is a mpjor factor in the [Marine H ghway Systenm budget.

Number 0368

MR RICHARDS said 70-75 percent of Marine H ghway System
operating costs are |abor costs, and that the fuel cost is a
smal | percentage of the current expense of operating the fleet.
It is true that a high-speed craft will burn nore fuel per unit
time, he said, but one needs to |ook at operating that vessel
for eight to ten hours a day as conpared with operating another
vessel for 24 hours with a huge crew on it. He said a high-
speed craft requires a crew size of about 10, whereas the
Mat anuska has a crew of 45-50 and the Col unbia has a crew of 65.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI expl ai ned that another advantage of a hi gh-speed
craft and a smaller vessel s that it provides greater
operational flexibility. For exanple, "sailing the Matanuska
t hrough Lynn Canal wth three cars on it is not a good match for
the demand that we have,"” he said. The new high-speed craft are
being designed to carry 35 vehicles (one nore than the 34
vehicles that the Aurora and the Le Conte carry) and 90, 000
pounds of freight.

Nunmber 0492
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN interjected, "And if we build nore ferries,
we're going to do a little bit better job of change orders,
right? What is it, $40 mllion now they're clainming on the
Kenni cot t ?"

Nunmber 0506

SENATOR ELTON called it "terribly unfortunate"” that sone people
want to correct their business m stakes or increase their profit

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -27- January 18, 2001



line by going to court. He said he would be shocked if that
claim [from the shipyard that built the Kennicott] turns out to
be anyt hi ng but speci ous.

SENATOR ELTON then said he thought Captain Capacci had "gl anced
off the issue" as he was tal king about the convenience to the
custonmers that will accrue with the changes that are anticipated
in the Sout heast Al aska Transportation Plan. He said:

One of the things that drove this plan -- a lot nore
t han convenience to the custoner -- is future cost and
what is going to occur with the conbination of shuttle
ferries fast ferries, and mainline ferries. The
initial convenience is going to be a by-product of the
tremendous saving in cost that wll accrue. And those
cost savings will not be just to the state, but to the

many businesses that depend on the transportation
systemin Sout heast Al aska.

Nunmber 0618

CAPTAI N CAPACCI explained that Marine H ghway System pl anners
have gone through Phase 1 of +the [fast-ferry] procurenent
process, evaluating five shipyard build-design packages, and
have narrowed the field to tw finalists that are in the
conpetitive range. Those finalists are neeting the owner's
requi renent substantively, are going to neet with the Marine
H ghway System design team to further di scuss t hose

requirenents, and wll be asked to prepare price proposals
within the next few nonths. The second stage of the procurenent
process wll be based on lowest price for a conpetitive design

that neets the systenlis denands, he said.

CAPTAIN CAPACCI then said that the first high-speed vessel is
bei ng designed for the Sitka-Juneau run, which it can nmake in a
day. That will provide the advantage of "turning the ship off
at night, having a very skeleton night crew cone aboard for
security and mai ntenance,"” rather than having a ship running 24
hours a day. "W realize sone significant savings in our
operating costs that way," he said. Revenue and traffic nodels
predict that if there were nore regular service to different
ports, traffic would grow and generate nore revenue.

CAPTAIN CAPACCI then pointed out that "one ship does not a
system nake." In order to have a true system he said the

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 28- January 18, 2001



Marine Hi ghway System would need another vessel running from
Ket chi kan north to Wangell and South Mtkof Island, and anot her
vessel of simlar speed running from Juneau south to Petersburg
(with a mnor road connection across Mtkof Island). Those
three vessels would be the bare essentials for an inproved
Sout heast Transportation system he said.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI said there also is potential for using a high-
speed ferry in Prince WIIliam Sound, connecting Cordova, Val dez,
and Wiittier in a daytinme operation to achieve a significant
saving in crew costs there.

Number 0829

CAPTAIN CAPACCI then turned to the Alaska Marine Hi ghway
Systeml's econom c picture, saying that conmttee nenbers should
have received the annual financial report earlier in the day.
The report for fiscal year 2000 shows an operating cost of

approximately $75 mnillion. The system generated about $40
mllion in revenues, and the state general fund appropriation
was for about $27 mllion. That left the Marine H ghway System
with a shortfall of about $8 nmillion, which along with sone
additional expenses for pay increases, fuel, and health-and-

benefits packages for enployees was absorbed by the Marine
H ghway Fund. "That fund is rapidly being eroded, and the cover
of this book is not yellow by accident,"” he said. "It's
Condition Yellow right now, and the cover for next year 1is
probably going to be red because we envision by the end of 2002
or beginning of '03 our Marine H ghway Fund wll be depleted
with the increased operating costs.” That is why it is
i nperative that we nove to a Southeast Transportation Plan that
makes sone significant cost savings in addition to neeting the
demands of the systems custoners, both Al aska residents and
visitors to the state, he said.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI continued, explaining, "That's one part of the
equation.” The other part is to increase revenues. The Marine
Hi ghway System took the initiative to undertake a narketing and
pricing study, conpleted in Septenber, that Commr ssioner Perkins
forwarded to commttee staff. That was the first conprehensive
review that the system has done in many years. It pointed out
that the market is strong, with demand for travel to Al aska and
demand from the local residents for convenient travel. He said
the system needs to take advantage of the "seven-to-one ratio”
and nmake enough noney from sumrertine visitors to provide for a

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -29- January 18, 2001



year-round system that serves the cultural, social, and economc
needs of the residents of Al aska.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI said one of the things the marketing and pricing
study pointed out was that of the "top ten" places visited by
the Marine H ghway System's sunmer passengers, the nunber one

destination was Juneau and nunber two was Anchorage. Five of
the passengers' "top ten" destinations were not in Southeast
Al aska. "So this is Alaska's Marine H ghway System because we

do not just serves Southeast Alaska, but the entire state,
traveling through and bringing sone significant econom c inpact
to the rest of the state,"” he enphasized. "W need to get that
nessage out." The marketing and pricing survey recomended
hiring a marketing manager so that while the systemis cutting
costs, it also is trying to increase revenues. There is a |ot
of unused capacity on ships, he noted.

Nunber 1012

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if the Kennicott is running across the
@Qulf of Alaska regularly in the sumrer.

Number 1039

CAPTAIN CAPACCI replied, "Yes, sir, she is. In fact, we
envision another trip in May this year, one nore trip this year
than |ast year. She's specifically designed for open ocean,
rides very confortably at sea with fin stabilizers, and she's a
significantly solid vessel. That's where she should be running,
and 1'd like to nove that way and operate the Kennicott nore
across |[the] @ulf.” Wth just increnmental changes in the

schedul e, that woul d be possible, he said.
Number 1061

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if the sailings were pretty full of
tourists, and asked if that is being marketed.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI said that in the sunmer, the ship is carrying
close to capacity, and that the system is "actively marketing
t hat now. "

Nunmber 1084

CAPTAI N CAPACCI noted that the marketing and pricing study had

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES - 30- January 18, 2001



showed that custoners had a great deal of trouble nmaking
reservati ons. Since then, he said, "significant inprovenents”
have been made in the tel ephone reservation system including a
nmessage system that tells custoners how long they have to wait
for service on the toll-free nunber and reducing waiting times
to 5-6 mnutes, which he characterized as "a significant
reduction.” In addition, use of the Internet for reservation
information is growing by |eaps and bounds, and they are now
pursuing using credit cards to actually nake reservations over
the Internet. He said they hope to have that in place by the
end of sunmer.

Nunmber 1164

CAPTAI N CAPACCI concluded by saying that the Marine H ghway
System can never pay for itself: "It never has, it never wll."
But he considers it prudent to try to close the fiscal gap
bet ween expenditures and revenues. In addition to reducing
expenses, he now is focusing on using marketing to fill the
system's wunused capacity. Public marine transportation is
critical to the residents of Al aska, he enphasized. "We need

this systemto get around.”
Nunmber 1234

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked about Captain Capacci's earlier
reference to a small road connection to Petersburg.

CAPTAI N CAPACCI explained that it involves a short connection
bet ween the existing Petersburg road system and the south end of
M t kof | sl and.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if the [National Forest] roadless
policy declared by the outgoing President of the United States
woul d precl ude doing that.

CAPTAIN CAPACCI said it would not, because there already is a
road in place.

ADJ OQURNMENT
Number 1246

CO CHAIR COANDERY adjourned the joint neeting of the House
Transportation Standing Commttee and the Senate Transportation
Standing Conmttee at 3:30 p. m

JT. H'S TRA COW TTEES -31- January 18, 2001



